
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

January 3, 2024 
2:00 p.m.       Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 

 
    

AGENDA 
 

I. Call to Order Barbara Sowada 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Mission and Vision Kandi Pendleton 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Barbara Sowada 

III. Minutes (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

IV. Community Communication  Barbara Sowada 

V. Old Business Barbara Sowada 

A. Employee Policy–Non-Discrimination & Anti-Harassment (Remains under review/development, no request for action) 

B. Employee Policy – Weapons Policy (For Action) Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel 

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Barbara Sowada 

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Compliance Committee Kandi Pendleton 

B. Governance Committee Barbara Sowada 

C. Quality Committee Kandi Pendleton 

D. Human Resources Committee  Kandi Pendleton 

E. Finance & Audit Committee         Marty Kelsey 

1. Capital Expenditure Requests (For Action) 

2. I.S. Report 

3. Bad Debt (For Action) 

4. Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Information 

F. Foundation Board Craig Rood 

G. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee  Barbara Sowada 

H. Joint Conference Committee                                        Barbara Sowada 

I. Building & Grounds Committee            Marty Kelsey 

IX. Contract Review                          Suzan Campbell 

A. Facility Master Planning Services Agreement (For Action) 

X. Medical Staff Report Kerry Downs, Medical Staff Services Director 

XI. Good of the Order                   Barbara Sowada 

XII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix))       Barbara Sowada 

XIII. Action Following Executive Session Barbara Sowada 

A. Request for Privileges (For Action) 

XIV. Adjourn Barbara Sowada 

1/178



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

2/178



Separator Page

Minutes for October 4 2023 Draft

3/178



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

October 4, 2023 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on 

October 4, 2023, at 2:00 p.m. with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Dr. Sowada welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order. 

 

Dr. Sowada requested a roll call and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees were 

present: Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Craig Rood, and Dr. Barbara Sowada.  

Excused: Ms. Kandi Pendleton. 

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Mr. Taylor 

Jones, County Commissioner Liaison; Dr. Brianne Crofts, Medical Staff Services President, and 

Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Dr. Sowada led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Mr. Rood read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson shared a message from former Trustee, Mr. Ed Tardoni, and his wife, Mrs. Joanna 

Tardoni, and a beautiful photography print of the blue moon on a metal plate for hanging. Mr. 

Tardoni’s note states a blue moon is a rare event that occurs only at the closest approach to earth. 

Mr. Tardoni said the print is reflective and the viewer can see their face in the photo. The lower 

left corner of this spectacular photo contains the words, "In this life we only meet people like you 

once in a blue moon.” The note states the gift is given with the wish it will provide support and 

aid when the infusion nurses in the Cancer Center face a tough day. Ms. Richardson thanked the 

Tardonis and said she will forward the print to the Cancer Center to display where visitors and 

patients may see it.  

 

AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as amended to table the Employee Policy under Old Business 

and affirm Mr. Rood as Vice President under New Business was made by Mr. Rood; second by 

Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

4/178



 

 

Minutes of the October 4, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the September 6, 2023, regular meeting as presented was 

made by Mr. Rood; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

Commissioner Jones said he needed to leave the meeting early due to another meeting. Dr. 

Sowada thanked him for attending. Dr. Sowada announced the Trustees would break at 4:00 p.m. 

to participate in an event in The Healing Garden in support of the Hospital and Oncology 

Department cancer awareness event.  

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

2023-24 Memorandum Of Understanding Between The Sweetwater County Board Of 

Sweetwater County Commissioners And The Memorial Hospital Of Sweetwater County 

 

Dr. Sowada reviewed the process to-date regarding the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). 

She said the Trustees approved an earlier version in August. Changes were made so approval of 

the final version is needed. Mr. Phillips provided an overview and said it is in effect for one year. 

He said it separates completely the Title 25 funds from what is budgeted for maintenance. Mr. 

Phillips expressed appreciation to the County Commissioners for their work through this process. 

The motion to approve the MOU as presented was made by Mr. Rood; second by Mr. Kelsey. 

Motion carried. Dr. Sowada thanked Ms. Richardson, Mr. Phillips, Commissioner Jones and 

everyone involved in the process. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

FY23 Audit Report 

 

Ms. Richardson introduced Mr. Darryn McGarvey from Clifton Larsen Allen (CLA) and thanked 

him for a great audit. She said CLA is very thorough and does an excellent job. Ms. Richardson 

said we learn from them every year. She said CLA has a great team. Ms. Richardson thanked the 

MHSC team and stressed this is a great team effort. Mr. McGarvey thanked the Hospital team and 

the Board of Trustees. He reviewed the audit report. Mr. McGarvey said the CLA staff that work 

on the Hospital audit primarily work on hospital audits only. The CLA team was onsite the first 

week in August and prepared the audit and financial statements with the assistance of MHSC staff. 

He said the Cerner EHR was the most significant item in the new accounting standard GASB96. 

Mr. McGarvey said material weaknesses are a major part of the process and there were none 

identified. He said CLA tries to bring things to the table every year to help the organization 

improve. He noted some of the impacts from COVID reflected in the presentation data. He said 

we have seen improvements in the operating loss per provider data over the past few years. Visits 

per FTE have increased. Days of cash on hand were at 100 days and we had a massive EHR 

conversion in the middle of all of this. Mr. McGarvey said all organizations increase days in A/R 

related to an EHR conversion. He said the key is how quickly we bring that back down and charity 

care has trended downward. Mr. McGarvey said there is information included in the audit report  

for board education. Dr. Sowada thanked Mr. McGarvey for his presentation. Mr. Kelsey thanked 

5/178



 

 

Minutes of the October 4, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

Mr. McGarvey for his work and said they always do a great job. The motion to approve the FY23 

Audit Report as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried.   

 

Human Resources Charter 

 

Dr. Sowada said the HR Charter has been slightly amended and will be returned next month for 

approval. 

 

Compliance Committee Charter 

 

Dr. Sowada said this is the first read and we will bring the charter back next month for approval. 

 

Governance Committee Charter 

 

Dr. Sowada said the recommended changes are in the packet and asked Mr. Kelsey to review. She 

said this is the first read and we will bring it back next month for approval. 

 

Finance & Audit Committee Charter 

 

Mr. Kelsey reviewed the recommended changes and said we will bring the charter back next month 

for approval. Mr. Kelsey expressed appreciation to everyone working on the committee charters.  

 

Vice President 

 

Dr. Sowada said Mr. Rood accepted stepping into the Vice President position. The motion to 

appoint Mr. Rood as Vice President for the 23/24 year as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; 

second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson reviewed person-centered care initiatives and highlighted the Patient & Family 

Advisory Council. She thanked the Medical Staff for working with us on the efforts to improve 

patient experience. Ms. Richardson provided a Critical Access Hospital status update. She gave a 

huge thank you to CLA and the MHSC audit team. The Board and Senior Leaders will meet 

November 13 and 14 for a Strategic Plan Retreat. Ms. Richardson said we continue to prepare for 

a visit from The Joint Commission for our survey. She thanked all staff for their work preparing. 

Quarterly Town Hall meetings are scheduled the week of October 16. Ms. Richardson said she 

attended the American Hospital Association Regional Policy Board meeting in Washington D.C. 

She met with many legislators and said we have to set the narrative for ourselves. She said she 

appreciates having the opportunity to attend. Ms. Richardson said we must keep the Hospital here 

for our community as a full-service hospital. She announced upcoming events and invited 

everyone to participate. She thanked staff, the Commissioners, physicians, the Board, and our 

community for supporting us to be here to take care of our community. 

 

  

6/178



 

 

Minutes of the October 4, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Quality Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said at last month’s meeting, the Board’s education was Veralon videos on quality. 

She said the videos asked what are the top 5 quality issues at your hospital? Dr. Sowada invited 

Dr. Kari Quickenden, Chief Clinical Officer, and Ms. Kara Jackson, Director of Quality          

Accreditation, Patient Safety, and Risk, to review highlights from the most recent Quality 

Committee meeting. They said their top 5 areas of focus are: 1) Medication Safety, 2) Sepsis, 3) 

Falls, 4) Patient Safety Processes & Principles in General, 5) Patient Experience. They said they 

all tie together and align with our Process Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) priorities. Ms. 

Jackson said over the last couple of years the entire organization has worked on quality and safety 

indicators. She said we have seen a lot of improvement. Collaboration through providers, staff, 

and various departments has made the difference. Ms. Richardson gave kudos to leaders making 

meetings happen to look at opportunities for improvement. Dr. Sowada thanked them for sharing 

the information and thanked everyone for all the work being done.  

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Mr. Rood said the Committee focused discussions on updates to a policy on anti-harassment and 

non-discrimination.   

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Capital Expenditure Requests - Mr. Kelsey said the Committee approved one capital expenditure 

request from staff. The motion to approve FY 24-15 for $316,565 as presented for a budgeted sole 

source item from Siemens for replacement x-ray equipment was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by 

Mr. Rood. Motion carried.  

 

Information Technology Report – Mr. Kelsey noted the large number of systems the IT 

Department keeps running. He said it is a good department doing a lot of good things. Ms. 

Richardson said cybersecurity is a huge threat and thanked Mr. Terry Thompson, Director, and the 

staff for keeping us as safe as we can be. Mr. Thompson thanked Ms. Richardson and the Board 

for their support.  

 

Bad Debt – The motion to approve the potential bad debt of $1,519,194.77 as presented was made 

by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried.  

 

Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Information – Mr. Kelsey said the report is in the meeting 

packet along with the financial data. He said it is a great report. 

 

Building and Grounds 

 

Mr. Kelsey said there is a lot going on and said the information is in the meeting packet.  

 

  

7/178



 

 

Minutes of the October 4, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

Foundation 

 

Dr. Sowada noted the report is in the meeting packet. Mr. Rood said the Foundation is working on 

replacing his position on the Board of Directors. He also asked everyone to save the date of 

February 3, 2024, for the next Red Tie Gala. 

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the meeting packet.  

 

Governance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the meeting packet.  

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Committee did not meet. 

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Committee has not met.  

 

BOARD EDUCATION 

 

Dr. Sowada said several people had difficulty accessing the webinar on The Governance Institute 

site. Mr. Kelsey said he was able to review the webinar and said it was very good and the topic of 

mental health is very serious. Dr. Sowada suggested revisiting discussion of the webinar at a later 

date. 

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Crofts said she completed her proctoring of the DaVinci and will work with Urology and OB 

to help them move forward. She said we are very grateful Dr. Hoffman joined us as well as Dr. 

Poundstone. Dr. Crofts said the Medical Staff are working on bylaws updates and in the process 

of selecting Department Chairs.  

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Mr. Kelsey suggested adding “personal vision for the Hospital” when the Trustees rotate through 

on sharing the mission and vision for the Hospital each month. Dr. Sowada said different lenses 

are like a kaleidoscope and suggested we may ask some of the staff to share their personal visions 

for the Hospital, as well.  

 

Dr. Sowada thanked everyone in attendance and reminded everyone about the Cancer Center 

special ceremony in The Healing Garden at 4:00 p.m. 

  

8/178



 

 

Minutes of the October 4, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into executive session at 3:26 p.m. was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. 

Rood. Motion carried. Dr. Sowada said there would be a 10-minute break. 

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

The motion to leave executive session and return to regular session at 4:55 p.m. was made by Mr. 

Rood; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Approval of Privileges 
 

The motion to approve the list of clinical privileges and granting appointments to the Medical Staff 

as discussed in executive session was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried. 

Credentials Committee Recommendations to the Board of Trustees for Granting Clinical 

Privileges and Granting Appointment to the Medical Staff from September 12, 2023 

1. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Brian Opferman, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Arion Lochner, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

2. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Daniel Kogan, Neurology 

 Dr. George Kingsley, OB/GYN 

 Dr. Mitchel Faulkner, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Benjamin Verseman, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Hannah Loewenberg, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Rowan Kelner, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

3. Initial Appointment to Consulting Staff (1 years) 

 Dr. Holly Huang, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Veronica Moreno-Gomez, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Judea Wiggins, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Aaron Shoskes, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

4. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. William Brann, Cardiovascular Disease 

 Dr. Gregory Kenyherz, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Michael Rethy, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

5. Reappointment to Non-Physician Staff (2 years) 

 Alisha Mackie, RN First Assist  

6. Initial Appointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Alan Pratt, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 

 

  

9/178



 

 

Minutes of the October 4, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 7 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 4:56 p.m.   

      

    

  ______________________________________  

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Secretary 

10/178



Separator Page

Minutes for November 13 2023 Special Workshop

11/178



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL WORKSHOP MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

November 13, 2023 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in a special workshop 

meeting at The Holiday Inn in Rock Springs, Wyoming, on November 13, 2023, at 1:00 p.m. with 

Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Dr. Sowada called the meeting to order. The following Trustees were present: Judge Nena James,  

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, and Dr. Barbara Sowada.  

Excused: Mr. Marty Kelsey and Mr. Craig Rood. 

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer.  

 

Guests: Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer; Dr. Kari Quickenden, Chief Clinical Officer; Dr. 

Melinda Poyer, Chief Medical Officer.  

 

BOARD EDUCATION 

 

Ms. Laura Lehan of PEAK Consulting led an education session around the strategic planning 

process.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 4:00 p.m.  

 

 

         ____________________________________ 
 

        Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Secretary 

 

 

12/178



Separator Page

Minutes for December 6 2023 Draft

13/178



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

December 6, 2023 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session via 

Zoom on December 6, 2023, at 2:00 p.m. with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Dr. Sowada welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order. 

 

Dr. Sowada requested a roll call and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees were 

present: Judge Nena James, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, and Dr. Barbara Sowada.  

Excused: Mr. Craig Rood. 

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Brianne 

Crofts, Medical Staff Services President; Mr. Taylor Jones, Sweetwater County Commissioner 

Liaison; and Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel.  

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Dr. Sowada led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Mr. Kelsey read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson reported we had over 100 people participate in the recent Rock Springs Lighted 

Holiday Parade including some members from our Patient and Family Advisory Council. She gave 

a huge shout out of appreciation to everyone who made it happen and participated.  

 

Dr. Sowada said the facilitator of the recent strategic planning session said she had never worked 

with a senior leader group that got along so well and worked together so well. Dr. Sowada said she 

was very complimentary of all the things accomplished since 2017 and it was wonderful to see the 

Hospital through someone else’s eyes. The consultant noted there was at least a 90% overlap on 

the three SWOT analysis outcomes completed by the Trustees, Leadership, and Medical Staff. Dr. 

Sowada gave many thanks to the staff for all they have done. 

 

AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Kelsey. 

Motion carried.   

 

  

14/178



 

 

Minutes of the December 6, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Due to the lack of a quorum of voting members for the October 4, 2023, regular meeting minutes 

and November 13, 2023, special meeting minutes, approval was tabled until the January meeting. 

The motion to approve the minutes of the November 1, 2023, regular meeting was made by Mr. 

Kelsey; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried. The motion to approve the November 10, 2023, 

special meeting minutes was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. The 

motion to approve the November 14, 2023, special meeting minutes was made by Mr. Kelsey; 

second by Judge James. Motion carried.  

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

There were no comments. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

Employee Policy – Non-Discrimination & Anti-Harassment 

 

Dr. Sowada reported the Committee is continuing work on this policy. 

 

Board Policy – Approval Process For Expansion Of Or Addition To Hospital Services 

 

Dr. Sowada reported this has been withdrawn. 

 

Residents In Training Policy 

 

The motion to approve the Residents In Training Policy with the correction of capitalization of 

“Hospital” as appropriate as recommended by Mr. Kelsey was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by 

Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

The Joint Commission Requirements Regarding the Board’s Role in Quality 

 

Dr. Sowada said she sent an American Hospital Association video link and some other background 

materials to the Trustees for their review. Ms. Pendleton said we will be providing more 

information in the Quality section moving forward. 

 

Board Self-Assessment Survey 

 

Dr. Sowada said the report has been loaded in the board portal. She said the information will be 

discussed in detail at the January meeting. 

 

Board Committee Assignment Revision 

 

Dr. Sowada reviewed the updated Committee assignments as follows: 

 

15/178



 

 

Minutes of the December 6, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

Judge James: Human Resources Committee 

  Quality Committee 

  Executive Oversight & Compensation Committee 

 

Mr. Rood: Moving from Human Resources Committee to Finance & Audit Committee 

 

FY23 Revised Audit 

 

Ms. Jan Layne, Controller, provided an update to the audit completed in 2023. She said we wait 

for the Quality Rate Adjustment (QRA) number from the State and received the final numbers 

November 15. The amount was approximately $2M more than we received last year. There is no 

way for us to calculate that number. The auditors revised the draft audit based on the updated 

information. She shared several updated financial ratios and said the update improves our bottom 

line. The motion to approve the FY23 Revised Audit as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second 

by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried.  

 

Patient Rights & Responsibilities Standard 

 

Ms. Richardson said we review the information every three years. Dr. Sowada said her 

understanding is there were no changes and asked for the Board’s pleasure to approve on first read. 

The motion to approve the Patient Rights & Responsibilities Standard as presented was made by 

Ms. Pendleton; second by Judge James. Motion carried. Mr. Kelsey requested “Hospital” be 

capitalized in the document as appropriate.  

 

Employee Policy – Weapons Policy 

 

Mr. Phillips reviewed the policy and said it was developed based on practices security staff were 

doing already and we added some things to ensure additional safety. Mr. Phillips said this used to 

be handled by statute. He said it is an effort to put into writing and make official our practices. He 

said it is designed to ensure staff and everyone onsite are protected and safe while protecting 

second amendment rights. 

 

Credentials Committee 

 

Orthopedic Privileges: The motion to approve the privileges document as presented was made by 

Ms. Pendleton; second by Judge James. Motion carried. 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson provided a person-centered care culture update. She said we continue to work with 

HealthTechS3 on our critical access hospital designation request process. We believe the survey 

by The Joint Commission will help expedite the process and our goal is to have the designation by 

the end of March 2024. Ms. Richardson said we had a successful strategic planning retreat and 

thanked all participants. She hopes to bring a plan to the Board in January or February. She said 

The Joint Commission is currently onsite and will remain until Friday. She said we are prepared 

and we feel confident the survey will go well. Ms. Richardson thanked Commissioner Jones for 

his work moving forward a new structure for the maintenance funding process from the County. 

16/178



 

 

Minutes of the December 6, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

She said we are grateful for the funds the County gives to us each year. We would like to place the 

money in a fund to accumulate year after year to help do the larger projects. She said the 

Commissioners were agreeable to do that and the money will stay with the County. Ms. Richardson 

said she will begin creating monthly radio spots and invited the Trustees to join her. She has also 

extended an offer to the Medical Staff and Leadership Team to participate with her. Ms. 

Richardson encouraged the Trustees to participate in the upcoming American Hospital Association 

Rural Healthcare Conference. Ms. Richardson recognized the MHSC Foundation for receiving the 

Rock Springs Chamber of Commerce Rock Star Award for Community Involvement. The Hospital 

was also nominated for the Enterprise Award. Ms. Richardson invited the Trustees to join us for 

the employee holiday lunch or dinner on December 7 as well as celebrate our 130th anniversary on 

December 15. Ms. Richardson thanked the Trustees and Commissioners for the support they give 

to us. She said we will continue to move forward. She said she is excited for the strategic plan 

initiatives and thanked staff for all they do every day. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Building and Grounds 

 

Mr. Kelsey said he typically writes a report but was unable to attend so he asked Dr. Sowada to 

share an update. Dr. Sowada said she was impressed with the number of projects in the pipeline 

and that the timelines are on track. Judge James said she was impressed with how proactive, how 

on top of things people are, and how much is happening. She said she was grateful to be invited 

and have the opportunity to attend. Mr. Kelsey asked for an update on the master plan list. Ms. 

Richardson said we will bring an agreement to the Board for approval to move forward with the 

plan.  

 

Compliance Committee 

 

 Dr. Sowada said Ms. April Prado, Foundation and Compliance Coordinator, does a great job with 

the minutes and said they are in the meeting packet.  

 

Governance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the minutes are in the meeting packet.   

 

Quality Committee 

 

Ms. Pendleton said she is working with Dr. Kari Quickenden, Chief Clinical Officer, and Ms. Kara 

Jackson,  Director of Quality, Accreditation, Patient Safety, and Risk, to have something to present 

to the full Board each month. She said the process is to get something in writing or a small 

presentation each month. At the November committee meeting, staff presented the health equity 

written action plan. She said there was a pretty in-depth discussion about the large Hispanic 

population in Sweetwater County and what we are doing to address their needs. The Hospital has 

a full-time interpreter onsite and also an Interpreter-On-Wheels (IOW). There are other staff 

members who are bilingual so staff are looking at opportunities to expand services. Ms. Pendleton 

said there was a discussion of some performance metrics and Medicare reimbursement. She said 

the end stage renal disease summary in the meeting packet was interesting. There was information 

about increased efficiencies in the dialysis department. Dr. Melinda Poyer, Chief Medical Officer, 

17/178



 

 

Minutes of the December 6, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

talked about the strategic planning session. She reported we are 100% on the post-partum 

hemorrhage scores for the past 5 months and we hit our sepsis goal for the last 8 months. We are 

focusing on our drug monitoring program in November. Ms. Richardson reviewed the QLER tele 

psych program. We are working on reviewing cases with the U of U on transfer patients and 

readmission and mortality rates of those patients. Ms. Pendleton said we hear comments about the 

emergency department. One of the control charts talks about the time it takes from admission to 

leave the ER. We have a goal of 110 minutes and we hit 108 minutes. Ms. Pendelton said the 

whole quality committee meeting packet has a lot of great information so she encourages everyone 

to review the entire packet. She said everyone from the Hospital and quality team does a great job.  

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the minutes are in the packet. Ms. Pendleton thanked everyone who helped her 

cover meetings while she was out of town. 

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Capital Expenditure Request: The motion to approve capital expenditure request FY24-21 for 

Alaris units for the low bid of $72,440 as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Ms. 

Pendleton. Motion carried.  

 

Information Technology Report: Mr. Kelsey said the report is in the packet. 

 

Bad Debt: The motion to approve the potential bad debt of $1,215,400.98 as presented was made 

by Mr. Kelsey; second by Judge James. Motion carried.   

 

Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Information: Mr. Kelsey said things look pretty good. He 

said we had a small loss. Mr. Kelsey said contract FTEs increased a little bit. He said staff have 

worked to reduce the cost of the contract staff.  

 

Foundation Board 

 

Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Executive Director, said she did not report anything in the 

packet because the Board of Directors did not meet in November. She said we are in full swing for 

the Red Tie Gala on February 3. She said the Committee working on the 10th Anniversary event 

has done an amazing job and all proceeds from the event will go to the Lab renovation and 

expansion project. She said this will help with funding but also to introduce the project to the 

community. She said the goal is to help the Hospital.   

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Committee did not meet. 

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Committee has not met.  

 

18/178



 

 

Minutes of the December 6, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

U of U Telemedicine Contract: Dr. Sowada asked Ms. Richardson to review the contract. Ms. 

Richardson said the changes allow access to U of U specialists to help keep patients here. She said 

we are pleased with the contract because it brings down costs and is a great service to utilize with 

the U of U. The motion to approve the U of U Telemedicine Contract as presented was made by 

Ms. Pendleton; second by Judge James. Motion carried. 

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Ms. Kerry Downs, Director of Medical Staff Services, reported Dr. Crofts is on call and was called 

into surgery. Ms. Downs read the following report from Dr. Crofts: 

 

 
  

GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Dr. Sowada thanked Judge James for joining the Board. Dr. Sowada said she will forward to the 

Trustees a hard copy of a publication regarding the Board’s role in quality and safety.  

Commissioner Jones thanked Ms. Richardson for mentioning the rollover account. He said he is 

glad to update the process and said it is the most transparent method. He said it amounted to getting 

the right people in the room. He thanked everyone involved. Dr. Sowada said we appreciate all the 

Commissioners have done and continue to do for the Hospital. She said it is a community effort.    

19/178



 

 

Minutes of the December 6, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 7 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into executive session at 3:25 p.m. was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Judge 

James. Motion carried. Dr. Sowada said there would be a 10-minute break and the anticipated 

amount of time for the executive session was approximately one hour. 

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

The motion to leave executive session and return to regular session at 4:42 p.m. was made by Ms. 

Pendleton; second by Judge James. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Approval of Privileges 
 

The motion to grant clinical privileges and appointments to the Medical Staff as discussed in 

executive session was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

Credentials Committee Recommendations to the Board of Trustees for Granting Clinical 

Privileges and Granting Appointment to the Medical Staff from November 14, 2023 

1. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Mark Reilly, Radiation Oncology 

2. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Michael Young, Radiology 

 Dr. Aaron Blau, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

3. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Melinda Poyer, Family Medicine 

 Dr. Frederick Matti, Radiology 

4. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Kevin Whitehead, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

 Dr. Jade Nunez, Tele ICU (U of U) 

 Dr. Jason Young, Tele ICU (U of U) 

 Dr. Toby Enniss, Tele ICU (U of U) 

 Dr. Joanna Grudziak, Tele ICU (U of U)  

 Dr. Michael Allen, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

5. Reappointment to Non-Physician Staff (2 years) 

 Jocelyn Palinek, Family Nurse Practitioner 

 Ross Little, Professional Counselor (SWCS) 

 Elisa Robbins, Clinical Social Work (SWCS) 

6. New Business 

 Emergency Medicine Privileges 

o Dr. Emily Sanchez 

 Mako Robotic Surgery Privileges  

 

The motion to approve the contract as discussed in executive session and authorize the CEO to 

sign was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Judge James. Motion carried. 

 

20/178



 

 

Minutes of the December 6, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 8 

ADJOURNMENT 

Dr. Sowada wished everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year. There being no further 

business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 4:46 p.m.  

      

    

  ______________________________________  

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Secretary 

21/178



 
 

                     ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date:1/3/2024  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: 
New Business  
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ☐ Revision 

 ☒ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 
Weapons policy requested by Board from Geoff Phillips.    

 

 Board Committee Action: 

Approved by HR Committee in November  
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ☐ For Review Only 

 ☒ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ☒ In House Comments:Click or tap here to enter text. 

 ☒ Board  Comments:Click or tap here to enter text. 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
Senior leadership recommends approval of this policy.   

22/178



DRAFT

Status Draft PolicyStat ID 14663737 

Approved N/A 

Review Due N/A 

Document 
Area 

Administration 

WEAPONS POLICY 

 WEAPONS POLICY 
Policy Prohibiting Weapons at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County ("MHSC" or the "Hospital"). 

I. Statement of Purpose 
The purpose of this policy is to reduce the potential risk of injury and/or property damage at 
the Hospital. This policy is in place to mutually respect the rights of citizens who lawfully carry 
a Weapon and to provide safety for patients, MHSC staff and the public. 
MHSC is committed to providing a safe and secure environment for the entire MHSC 
community. These restrictions on the ability to carry Weapons, concealed or otherwise, on 
MHSC Property (as defined below) have been developed and will be implemented to best 
provide for a safe and secure environment. 

II. Persons Covered by this Policy 
This Policy applies to all parties on MHSC Property; however, this Policy specifically excludes 
MHSC personnel specifically designated for security and/or law enforcement functions as set 
forth below in Paragraph IV(B) of this Policy. 

III. Definitions 
MHSC Campus 
"MHSC Campus" includes all the land and improvements controlled by MHSC, whether owned, 
leased, or licensed. MHSC Campus also includes any location that comes under the control of 
MHSC, whether owned, leased, or licensed. 
Firearm 
"Firearm" means a loaded or unloaded device, by whatever name known, which is designed to 
expel a projectile or projectiles by the action of an explosion, expansion of gas, or escape of 
gas. This includes air-powered devices as well as those using gunpowder. 
MHSC Property 
"MHSC Property" or "Property of MHSC" includes any building or improvement, including, 
without limitation, offices and storage facilities, classroom, laboratory, medical clinic, hospital, 
including, without limitation, research venue, whether owned, leased or operated by MHSC; any 
real property, including parking areas, sidewalks and common areas under the control of 

WEAPONS POLICY. Retrieved 12/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/14663737/.

Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 1 of 5

23/178

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



DRAFT

MHSC; and any vehicles of any kind owned, leased or controlled by MHSC. 
Weapon 
"Weapon" means any device designed to produce serious injury or death, or to intimidate, 
threaten, or endanger an individual, or any replica that a reasonable person might believe 
capable of producing serious injury or death. Weapons include, but are not limited to, Firearms 
(as defined herein), Ammunition (as defined herein), stun guns, dart guns, dangerous 
chemicals, any explosive devices (including hand grenades, bombs, black powder, smokeless 
powder, percussion caps, friction primers, and pyrotechnic fuses), knives with blades longer 
than those of a 4" folding pocket knife, switchblades, daggers, swords, striking instruments 
(including clubs, truncheons, blackjacks, and metal knuckles), martial arts weapons (including 
nunchakus, tonfas, staffs and 
throwing stars), bow and arrow combinations, and paintball guns. The definition of "Weapon," 
is to be broadly construed. 
Ammunition 
"Ammunition" means ammunition or cartridge cases, primers, bullets, or propellent powder 
designed for use in any Firearm. 

IV. Prohibited Activities and Other Restrictions 

A. Weapons. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, MHSC maintains a Weapon free campus. This 
means that no person covered by this Policy, unless authorized by law or specifically 
exempted by federal or state law or this Policy, is authorized to possess a Weapon 
while on MHSC Property or engaged in MHSC‐related business or activities or 
otherwise present in, on or about the MHSC Property located on the MHSC Campus. 
Without limiting the foregoing, MHSC expressly prohibits: (i) any person covered by 
this Policy from possessing a Weapon while in, on or about the MHSC Property 
located on the MHSC Campus; and (ii) any person covered by this Policy from 
displaying, brandishing, discharging or otherwise using any and all Weapons, 
including concealed Weapons, while in, on or about the MHSC Property located on 
the MHSC Campus. 

B. Exceptions. 
The provisions of this Policy do not apply to the possession of Weapons while in, on 
or about the MHSC Property located on the MHSC Campus to the extent that the 
possession of Weapons is directly related to one of the exceptions set forth below, 
which exceptions are intended, consistent with applicable law, to be narrowly 
construed and applied: 

i. The Weapon is carried, concealed or otherwise, by (a) an employee of 
MHSC who is required to carry a Weapon as a condition of his or her 
employment; or (b) a law enforcement officer from an external law 
enforcement agency conducting official business on the MHSC Campus. 

ii. MHSC's Chief Executive Officer ("CEO"), or the CEO's designee, in his or her 
discretion, may grant a comparable exception to paragraph (i) above to an 
individual who has requested permission to carry, concealed or otherwise, 
a Weapon when circumstances indicate such an exception is reasonably 
justified and its granting will not pose an unreasonable risk to health and 
safety (hereinafter referred to as a "Case‐By‐Case Exception"). A 
Case‐By‐Case Exception may be approved with such restrictions as 

WEAPONS POLICY. Retrieved 12/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/14663737/.

Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 2 of 5

24/178



DRAFT

deemed appropriate, including, but not limited to, the nature and number of 
Weapons authorized, the Property of MHSC and/or MHSC Campus in, on 
or about which the Weapons may be carried or the time the Case‐By‐Case 
Exception will remain in effect. An individual seeking a Case‐By‐Case 
Exception must submit his or her request in writing, and the request, at a 
minimum, must contain the individual's full name, address, and 
relationship to MHSC, a description of the Weapon[s] desired to be carried, 
a statement explaining the basis for the request. The Chief Executive 
Officer of MHSC, or the CEO's designee, may request any additional 
information he or she deems necessary or appropriate to evaluate the 
request. Anyone granted a Case‐By‐Case Exception will receive a letter so 
indicating from the MHSC CEO, which he or she must carry within him or 
her while in, on, or about the MHSC Property on the MHSC Campus. MHSC 
shall maintain a list of all Case‐By‐Case Exceptions granted and reserves 
the right to terminate any such grants of exemption at any time for any 
reason. 

C. Public Right of Ways 
An individual carrying a concealed Weapon shall not be deemed to be in violation of 
this Policy while he or she is traveling along a public right of way that touches or 
crosses the MHSC Campus if the concealed Weapon is being carried in accordance 
with the applicable Wyoming or Federal law. 

V. Signage 
MHSC administration shall determine the content and exact placement of posted signs 
indicating that concealed and open carry Firearms and/or Weapons are prohibited. 

VI. Enforcement 
Any individual, including those visiting or conducting business on the MHSC Campus, found to 
have carried a Weapon in, on or about the Property of MHSC located on the MHSC Campus, 
knowingly, or found to be carrying a Weapon under circumstances in which the individual 
should have known that he or she was in possession of a Weapon, may be removed from and/
or banned from the MHSC Campus for such time and extent as MHSC determines appropriate. 
Any employee found to have carried a Weapon in, on or about the Property of MHSC located 
on the MHSC Campus knowingly, or found to be carrying a Weapon under circumstances in 
which the employee should have known that he or she was in possession of a Weapon, may, in 
accordance with applicable MHSC policies, be subject to discipline up to and including, but not 
limited to, immediate termination of employment. If employee is employed by an independent 
contractor, MHSC will consult with and coordinate the disciplinary outcome in conjunction with 
the employer/independent contractor. 
In addition to any other action, violations of this Policy may result in referrals to external law 
enforcement agencies at the discretion of MHSC staff and visitors. 

VII. Procedure 

A. When an individual is in possession of a Weapon on MHSC property, MHSC security 
personnel shall be immediately notified. MHSC security will instruct the individual in 
possession of the Weapon to remove the Weapon from MHSC Property. 

B. If an individual in possession of a Weapon refuses to surrender the Weapon or 
remove the Weapon from MHSC Property, MHSC security will request that the 

WEAPONS POLICY. Retrieved 12/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/14663737/.

Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 3 of 5

25/178



DRAFT

individual leave MHSC Property immediately. If the individual refuses to leave MHSC 
property, local law enforcement shall be immediately contacted to remove the 
individual. 

C. If an individual in possession of a Weapon on MHSC Property is physically or 
mentally unable to remove the Weapon from MHSC property or has no means of 
transportation to remove the Weapon from MHSC Property, MHSC security will 
temporarily store the Weapon in the MHSC safe or another secure location in 
accordance with the following policies and procedures: 

1. Prior to temporarily storing a Weapon in the MHSC safe, the owner shall sign a Release, Waiver 
and Indemnity Agreement unless the owner of the Weapon is mentally or physically unable to 
sign the Release, Waiver and Indemnity Agreement. 

2. MHSC staff shall attach a label/tag to the Weapon indicating the owner's name, address, 
telephone number, date and time of day. MHSC shall also attach a copy of a government 
issued photo ID to the owner's Weapon and a photograph of the Weapon taken by MHSC staff. 

3. All Firearms temporarily stored in the MHSC safe must be unloaded. MHSC will store 
Ammunition in a separate secure location as determined by MHSC security personnel. 

4. Before any Weapon is returned to the owner, the owner must verify his or her identity to MHSC 
security with a government issued photo ID that matches the copy of the government issued 
photo ID attached to the Weapon. 
Notwithstanding anything contained in this policy, MHSC security is authorized to temporarily 
store Weapons if requested by law enforcement. 

5. MHSC has neither intended nor designed its premises to be used as a storage facility for 
Weapons. MHSC does not make any warranty or representation of any kind regarding the 
storage containers or the security of the temporarily stored Weapons. MHSC will have no 
responsibility for the safekeeping of Weapons and such storage does not create any type of 
bailment or related obligations on the part of MHSC. Weapon owners assume full 
responsibility for, and risk of, property damage while Weapons are temporarily stored in the 
MHSC safe or at an MHSC secured location. 

6. MHSC's insurance will not insure Weapons temporarily stored in the MHSC safe against 
damage, theft, casualty, or loss of any kind. It is the sole responsibility of Weapon owners to 
obtain insurance for Weapons temporarily stored in the MHSC safe. 

7. Weapons temporarily stored in the MHSC safe or a secure location shall be considered to be 
abandoned if the stored Weapon remains in the MHSC safe more than fifteen (15) days past 
the initial storage date indicated on the label/tag attached to the Weapon. MHSC may, after 
making reasonable efforts to notify the owner in writing of the abandoned Weapon (but no 
earlier than fifteen (15) days thereafter), at its sole discretion, turn the Weapon over to local 
law enforcement. 

8. MHSC reserves the right to refuse the temporary storage of any Weapon if, in the sole 
discretion of MHSC staff, it is determined that the temporary storage of the Weapon exposes 
MHSC to the potential risk of injury and/or property damage. 

WEAPONS POLICY. Retrieved 12/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/14663737/.

Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 4 of 5

26/178



DRAFT

Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

WEAPONS POLICY. Retrieved 12/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/14663737/.

Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 5 of 5

27/178



 

WEAPONS STORAGE 

Release, Waiver and Indemnity Agreement 

I, the undersigned, am at least eighteen years of age. I hereby acknowledge that 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (the “Hospital” or “MHSC”) is extending a 

special privilege in allowing me to store weapons and/or ammunition (collectively, 

“Weapons” as defined in the MHSC Weapons Policy) and on the Hospital’s premises while 

during the dates provided below. In consideration of the privilege to store the Weapons at 

the Hospital, I, for myself and any personal representative, heirs, and next of kin, hereby 

agree to the following:  

 

1. ACKNOWLEDGMENT.  By my signature below, I acknowledge that I have 

read, understand, and agree to the MHSC Weapons Policy. 

 

2. ACCEPTANCE OF RISK. I understand that MHSC has neither intended nor 

designed its premises to be used as a storage facility for Weapons.  MHSC does 

not make any warranty or representation of any kind regarding the safe, storage 

containers or the security of the temporarily stored Weapons.  MHSC will have 

no responsibility for the safekeeping of Weapons and such storage does not 

create any type of bailment or related obligations on the part of MHSC. I assume 

full responsibility for, and risk of, property damage while Weapons are 

temporarily stored in the MHSC safe or at an MHSC secured location.    

 

3. INSURANCE.  I acknowledge that MHSC’s insurance will not insure Weapons 

temporarily stored in the MHSC safe against damage, theft, casualty, or loss of 

any kind.  I further understand and acknowledge that it is entirely my 

responsibility to obtain insurance for Weapons that are in storage at the 

Hospital. 

 

4. RELEASE.  I agree to and do hereby release, acquit, forever discharge, and 

covenant not to sue Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County, its Board of 

Trustees, directors, officers, employees, trustees, and agents (collectively, 

“Releasees”) from any and all liability to me, my personal representative, heirs, 

and next of kin for any loss, theft, damage, destruction, claim, demands, costs, 

and expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) in connection with my 

storage of Weapons at the Hospital. I understand and hereby acknowledge that 

if the Weapons are damaged, lost, stolen, or destroyed for any reason or by any 

cause, including but not limited to acts of God, nature, weather, fire, theft, or 

otherwise, my only recourse will be any insurance that I have secured. 

 

28/178



5. INDEMNIFICATION. I agree to indemnify and hold harmless MHSC and 

Releasees from any loss, liability, theft, damage, or cost that may be incurred 

(including damage the Weapons may cause to third-party property) due to my 

storage of the Weapons at the Hospital. 

 

6. LAW AND POLICIES. I agree to abide by all applicable laws and MHSC 

policies in connection with my storage of the Weapons at the Hospital.  

 

7. SAFE STORAGE.  I understand and agree that all Firearms temporarily stored 

in the MHSC safe must be unloaded.  MHSC will store Ammunition in a 

separate secure location as determined by MHSC security personnel. 

 

8. LABEL/TAG.  I understand, hereby acknowledge and consent to the following: 

MHSC staff shall attach a label/tag to the Weapon indicating my name, address, 

telephone number, date and time of day.  MHSC shall also attach a copy of a 

government issued photo ID to my Weapon and a photograph of the Weapon 

taken by MHSC staff. 

 

9. ABANDONED WEAPONS.  I agree that Weapons temporarily stored in the 

MHSC safe or a secure location shall be considered to be abandoned if the 

stored Weapon remains in the MHSC safe more than fifteen (15) days past the 

initial storage date indicated on the label/tag attached to the Weapon.  MHSC 

may, after making reasonable efforts to notify the owner in writing of the 

abandoned Weapon (but no earlier than fifteen (15) days thereafter), at its sole 

discretion, turn the Weapon over to local law enforcement. 

 

10. RIGHT TO REFUSE.  I agree that MHSC reserves the right to refuse the 

temporary storage of any Weapon if, in the sole discretion of MHSC staff, it is 

determined that the temporary storage of the Weapon exposes MHSC to the 

potential risk of injury and/or property damage. 

 

11. CONTACT PERSON. I agree to provide a contact person and a phone number 

in my absence so that, in the event of an emergency, the contact person will be 

responsible for the Weapons. 

 

12. SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY: MHSC and the MHSC Board of Trustees do not 

waive sovereign or governmental immunity by entering into this Agreement, 

and specifically retain immunity and all defenses available to them as 

sovereigns pursuant to Wyo. Stat. §1-39-104(a) and all other state and federal 

law. 

 

I further expressly agree that this Release, Waiver, and Indemnity Agreement is intended 

to be as broad and inclusive as permitted by the law, and if any portion hereof is held invalid, it is 

agreed that the balance shall, notwithstanding, continue in full legal force and effect. In the event 

29/178



of any cause of action, the laws of the State of Wyoming apply, and the jurisdiction lies with the 

state or federal courts of Wyoming. 

 

Full Name (printed): ________________________________  

Driver’s License or other ID#: _______________  

Date of Birth: ___________________________  

Contact Person:__________________________ 

Address (Street/City/State/Zip Code): 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

E-mail: ____________________________ Phone: _____________________________  

Storage Dates:____________________  To ____________________. 

 

 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 1200 COLLEGE DRIVE, ROCK SPRINGS, 

WYOMING 82901 

(307) 362-3711  FAX (307) __________ 

  

An Equal Opportunity/Affirmative Action Institution  sweetwatermemorial.com  

 

30/178



Chairs Report 

Quality Committee Meeting – December 20, 2023 

Items to take note of - 

 The committee is still working on an executive summary for the Board Packet each month.    

Watch for those changes at the January or February board meeting. 

 TeamSTEPPS training is set to begin in January. 

o Team Strategies & Tools to Enhance Performance & Patient Safety 

o An evidence-based training module for healthcare practices to improve patient safety by 

teaching clearer communication, efficient work practices, and a stronger commitment 

to teamwork. 

 Dr. Poyer’s Medical Staff Update  

o Dr. Sarette and a recent collaboration with a Primary Children’s Facilitator in regard to 

pediatric respiratory patients.  The goal is to improve patient care onsite versus needing 

to transport patients. 

o CLEAR, the new psychology program, is still in the 90-day review period.  The team is 

utilizing it and working through some issues and possible areas for improvement. 

 Control Charts & Dashboards  

o Median Admit Decision Time to ED Departure Time is steady for the last 3 months at 

about 60 minutes.  That’s imperative for patient comfort and safety. 

o Overall Sepsis Bundle Compliance has been above our 60% goal since January 2023. 

o  Falls – there were zero inpatient falls in October. 

o Improving Patient Experience is one of our FY24 PIPS Goals.  MHSC is performing better 

in 6 of the 7 CAHPS measures. 

 A huge thanks to the Quality Team and the entire hospital for a successful Joint Commission 

Survey 

 

For detailed information please see the reports and minutes of the meeting. 

Kandi Pendleton 

31/178



Chairs Report 

Human Resources Committee Meeting – December 18, 2023 

Items to take note of - 

 Turnover appears to have stabilized since COVID; our numbers are on track to be similar to 

2018/2019 

 Employee Policies in the works, hopefully to be presented to the full board in February. 

o Updating the Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Policies 

o Creating a Consensual Relationship Policy 

 The 2024 Employee Benefit Guide is in the packet.  It’s great information to review and a huge 

benefit the full-time employees of the hospital. 

 

For detailed information please see the reports and minutes of the meeting. 

Kandi Pendleton 

32/178



Separator Page

Cap Ex FY 24 28

33/178



34/178



35/178



36/178



37/178



38/178



39/178



Separator Page

Cap Ex FY 24 29

40/178



41/178



42/178



43/178



44/178



45/178



46/178



47/178



48/178



49/178



50/178



51/178



52/178



53/178



54/178



Separator Page

Cap Ex FY 24 30

55/178



56/178



57/178



58/178



59/178



60/178



61/178



62/178



63/178



64/178



65/178



66/178



Separator Page

Cap Ex FY 24 31

67/178



68/178



69/178



70/178



71/178



72/178



73/178



74/178



75/178



76/178



77/178



78/178



79/178



80/178



Separator Page

cap Ex FY 24 32

81/178



82/178



83/178



84/178



85/178



86/178



87/178



88/178



89/178



90/178



91/178



92/178



93/178



94/178



95/178



96/178



97/178



98/178



99/178



100/178



101/178



102/178



103/178



104/178



105/178



106/178



107/178



108/178



109/178



110/178



111/178



112/178



113/178



114/178



115/178



116/178



117/178



118/178



119/178



120/178



121/178



122/178



123/178



124/178



125/178



126/178



127/178



128/178



129/178



130/178



131/178



132/178



133/178



134/178



135/178



136/178



137/178



138/178



139/178



140/178



141/178



142/178



143/178



144/178



145/178



146/178



147/178



148/178



149/178



150/178



151/178



152/178



153/178



154/178



December 18, 2023 

MHSC Board of Trustees Report 

Please see the accompanying report that was provided to the Foundation Board of Directors on 
December 4, 2023. This meeting was a hybrid meeting in replace of the November and December 
Foundation Board Meetings. The report was provided by Ms. Marshall and outlined Foundation 
activities in November. 

Key notes- the Red Tie Gala is February 3, 2024. This is a 10-year anniversary celebration. 

Report Submitted By: Tiffany Marshall 

155/178



Executive Director Report
PROVIDED BY

REPORTING DATE

M
O

N
TH

 I
N

 R
EV

IE
W

FU
TU

R
E 

D
A

TE
S

FU
N

D
IN

G
R

EQ
U

ES
TS

Tiffany Marshall

December 2023 Foundation Monthly Board Meeting

Started Red Tie Gala planning. Have created a committee of hospital staff as well as a
few community members. 

Collateral has been made
E-bike raffle now live
Website is live
Tickets/Sponsorships on sale
Mailers have been sent out

Ran “The Beat’ social media campaign. Program finished 12/1/2023.
Received 3 new monthly donors, one one-time donor

Rolled out new Guardian Angel collateral.
Recognized 6 new Guardian Angels.

OB, MedSurg,  Same Day Surgery, and ICU staff
Attend Governor’s mental health townhall at WWCC
Attended quarterly Wyoming Workforce Development Council meeting
Met with architects from Pact Studios regarding the MHSC Master Plan project
 The Foundation WON the Community Involvement Rockstar Award!

Guardian Angel Program
April continues to promote the program to staff through Department meetings. 
Will start distributing new collateral.

Testimonial Project
Still working to record and finalize schedule.  Need to reschedule for some
board members. 

Digital Foundation Newsletter
Working on design and messaging. Would like to get board feedback on content.

MHSC Master Plan- Received the contract and quote. Currently in review with
lawyers. 
MHSC Christmas event- is being combined with the hospital’s 130th birthday. 

December .
Red Tie Gala- working on sponsorships and auction items. Needs help getting
auction items and selling E-bike raffle tickets. 
Handed in BH project proposal, reviewed with Irene, and working on 5-year
projection model. 
Finalizing the spending from an ultrasound grant for 6 new ultrasound machines.
Reporting will be due soon.
Working on staff testimonials for Helmsley Charitable Trust newsletter.

No funding requests 

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

PR
O

JE
C

TS

Christmas Staff Lunch/Dinner- December 7, 2023 
Christmas Event- December 15,  2023
Next Foundation Board Meeting- January 25, 2024
Red Tie Gala setup- February 1 and 2, 2024
Red Tie Gala- February 3, 2024

156/178



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…December Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 
Date:  19 December, 2023 
 
Oncology Suite…Work has not commenced yet as the contractor wants to have all materials on 
site before work begins due to a lot of the work will be done after hours as it is a working area. 
 
Lighting Arrest System…project is complete and this topic will be removed from the agenda. 
 
Medical Imaging---X-Ray and Core…contractor/staff are waiting on the X-Ray work to be 
completed in the Emergency Department before work begins on this project. 
 
Laboratory Renovation Project…It was reported that design work continues and that it will be 
well after the first of the year before Groathouse can provide MHSC a GMP (Guaranteed 
Maximum Price). It is hoped that construction can commence in May, 2024. Hospital staff is in 
need of the GMP before serious discussions can occur regarding other planned Hospital 
projects. 
 
University of Utah Suite Project…this project is on hold for now awaiting progress on other 
Hospital projects. 
 
Master Plan/ MOB Entrance and Foundation Lab Projects…Irene mentioned that she hopes to 
bring a contract for Master Planning services to the January meeting of the Board of Trustees. 
She also stated that, in her opinion, the MOB project is a high priority project and should be 
initiated and completed. Irene mentioned that the use of the old Foundation area is dependent 
on decisions that are made in the Master Planning effort. There are plumbing and sewer issues 
that need to be addressed. 
 
This was a short meeting. The next meeting is scheduled for January 16th, 2024. 
 
For additional details, please consult the meeting minutes prepared by Tami Love. 

157/178



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

November 28, 2023 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on December 19, 2023, 

at 2:30 PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

   Mr. Craig Rood – Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

   Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Maintenance Supervisor/ Project Manager 

 

Excused:  Mr. James Horan, Director of Facilities 

 

 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order and asked for a mission moment to be shared. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the agenda. Mr. Rood made a motion to approve the 

agenda. Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed.  

 

There was not a quorum available to approve the minutes from the November 28, 2023 meeting.  

The minutes will be brought to the January meeting for approval. 

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Johnston said the average days overdue is coming down.  He is continuing to work on cleaning 

up some older work orders left from some staff turnover in the department.  He doesn’t see anything 

outside the norm. 

 

 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Oncology Suite renovation 

 

Mr. Johnston did a walkthrough with the general contractor this morning to make sure all is 

ready to start.  They expect to get started after the first of the year.  The doors are still out 3 

weeks, but this will coincide with the work starting early January.  He will have a more definite 

schedule from the general contractor later this week.  

  

Lightning Arrest System 

 

Mr. Johnston reported this project is now complete. The final inspections were done and approved.  

We are waiting for the stamped certification from the engineer.  This project will be removed from 

the agenda. 

 

 

 

 

 

158/178



 

 

Minutes of the December 19, 2023, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

Medical Imaging Core and X-ray 

 

Mr. Johnston said the electrical contractors for the ER x-ray room were onsite last week.  They 

are waiting to see if a trough or conduit will be needed for the new equipment.  Once this project 

gets closer to completion, we will focus on the other two x-ray rooms. 

 

SLIB Laboratory Expansion project 

 

Mr. Kelsey reported all contracts for CMAR have been signed and asked if we were still on 

schedule for a GMP after the first of the year.  Mr. Johnston said the engineer was onsite today to 

make any recommendations or changes with the architects.  There were a few issues flagged by 

the State regarding the lobby atrium.  The CMAR is working on bids for the GMP, and the schedule 

is to break ground in April or May.  Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Director, keeps the State 

Land Investment Board updated with our progress. 

 

U of U suite renovation 

 

Ms. Love said this project is still on hold. 

 

Master Plan/Grant for Foundation & MOB entrance 

 

Ms. Richardson reported the Master Plan agreement should be ready for the Board to review and 

approve in January. The Master Plan will incorporate the prioritized project list from this 

committee and other potential ideas that have come from strategic planning sessions.  The two 

grant projects; MOB entrance and Foundation space are also included in the plan.  We have 

decided to move forward with the MOB entrance due to door issues and the opportunity to gain 

more patient waiting space. The Foundation space grant includes plumbing and flooring that will 

need to be done with whatever service moves to the area.  Both grants are on the same timeline as 

the Laboratory project; December 2026.  

 

Mr. Kelsey asked that we review the prioritized project list once we have some financial 

decisions and the master plan started. 

 

 

New Business 

 

No new business was discussed. 

Other 

 

The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, January 16, 2023; 2:30P – 3:30P 

 

Mr. Kelsey adjourned the meeting at 2:53 pm. 
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

159/178



160/178



161/178



162/178



163/178



164/178



165/178



166/178



167/178



168/178



169/178



170/178



171/178



172/178



173/178



174/178



175/178



176/178



177/178



178/178


	Agenda - January 3, 2024 Mtg
	Mission and Vision
	Minutes for October 4 2023 Draft
	Minutes for November 13 2023 Special Workshop
	Minutes for December 6 2023 Draft
	Orientation memo for Weapons policy Suzan Campbell for approval
	WEAPONS POLICY for review January 3 2024
	Weapons Storage Release and Indemnity Agreement Form 12.5.23.gjp
	Quality Committee
	Human Resources Committee
	Cap Ex FY 24 28
	Cap Ex FY 24 29
	Cap Ex FY 24 30
	Cap Ex FY 24 31
	cap Ex FY 24 32
	I.S. Report
	Finance &amp; Audit Committee Meeting Information
	Foundation MHSC Board of Trustees Report- January 24
	Foundation December Executive Director Report for January 2024 packet
	Building and Grounds Committee...Chair&apos;s Report...December 2023
	Building and Grounds Comm Minutes December 19 2023 Tami Love
	Facility Master Planning Services Agreement

